Children, Young People and Education Committee

Meeting Venue: Cynulliad
Committee Room 1 - Senedd Cenedlaethol
Cymru
. National
Meeting date: Assembly for

Wednesday, 7 May 2014 Wales

Meeting time: ‘i// y’
09.15

For further information please contact:
Marc Wyn Jones

Committee Clerk

029 2089 8505

CYPCommittee@wales.gov.uk

Agenda

Private Pre-meeting - 09.15 - 09.30

1 Introductions, apologies and substitutions 09.30

2 Pre Legislative scrutiny of the Qualification (Wales) Bill - Evidence

session 1 (09.30 - 10.30) (Pages 1 - 18)
WJEC
CYPE(4)-12-13 - Paper 1

Gareth Pierce - Chief Executive
TBC

3 Pre Legislative scrutiny of the Qualifications (Wales) Bill - Evidence

session 2 (10.30 - 11.30) (Pages 19 - 25)
CYPE(4)-12-14 - Paper 2

Huw Evans - Former Chair of the Review of Qualifications for 14 to 19-year-olds in



Wales

4 Pre Legislative scrutiny of the Qualifications (Wales) Bill - Evidence

session 3 (11.30 - 12.30) (Pages 26 - 30)
National Training Federation Wales
CYPE(4)-12-14 - Paper 3

Arwyn Watkins, Chief Executive Officer NTfW - Cambrian Training Company Ltd
Faith O’Brien, Interim Chair - ITEC Training
Jeff Protheroe, Operations Manager

5 Papers to note

Inquiry into Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services - Additional information
from Barnardo's Cymru following the meeting on 2 April (Pages 31 - 34)
CYPE(4)-12-14 - Paper to note 4

Inquiry into Educational Outcomes for Children from low income households - Letter
from the Minister for Education and Skills (Pages 35 - 38)
CYPE(4)-12-14 - Paper to note 5



Agenda ltem 2

Document is Restricted

Pack Page 1



National Assembly for Wales

Children and Young People Committee

Pre Legislative scrutiny of the Qualification (Wales) Bill
CYPE(4)-12-13 - Paper 1

Response from : WJEC

Background

The invitation from the Committee states that the Welsh Government has given an
“early indication that the main purpose of the Qualifications (Wales) Bill is twofold”:

e to establish a single body to be responsible for the regulation and quality
assurance of non-degree qualifications in Wales and remove the current
regulatory responsibility for qualifications from Ministers; and

e in due course, for the body to take responsibility for awarding most
gualifications for 14 to 16-year-olds as well as A levels and the Welsh
Baccalaureate.

The Committee has indicated that its pre-legislative scrutiny therefore focuses on
four broad areas, and these have been used as the four main sections of this paper.

1. “Is the proposed vision and remit for Qualifications Wales an effective
organisational model?”

In considering the proposed remit for Qualifications Wales, detailed consideration

needs to be given to the meaning and relevance of “regulation”, “quality assurance”
and “responsibility for awarding”.

There is already a blueprint for qualifications regulation that is manifest in the current
regulatory role fulfilled by the Welsh Government within the three-country approach
that exists for general qualifications and the four-country approach that exists for
aspects of vocational qualifications provision.

In relation to guality assurance, it is important to take into account that awarding
organisations will themselves have arrangements in place for quality assurance in
relation to all aspects of the development and delivery of qualifications. It therefore
becomes important that consideration is given to the scope of the complementary
work that Qualifications Wales should undertake in relation to quality assurance —
much of this may in fact be undertaken by setting out criteria or design principles for
gualifications, coupled with the process of accrediting qualifications against those
criteria. These aspects of quality assurance are well aligned with the regulatory role
and should therefore be effective components of the organisational model. A
separate question is the extent to which Qualifications Wales will engage with quality
assurance matters relating to learning providers, or whether this continues to be a
matter for the independent inspection service, Estyn. A further consideration is
whether Qualification Wales will engage directly with awarding organisations’ quality
assurance systems on matters such as teacher-assessed components which
contribute to a qualification award.

Pack Page 14



In relation to responsibility for awarding, there are key responsibilities relating to the
awarding framework which Qualifications Wales will need to take on from the outset.
This relates in the first instance to the awarding of the new AS qualifications in Wales
in summer 2016, less than twelve months after the establishment of Qualifications
Wales. It may therefore be helpful if the organisation’s interim CEO could be in a
position to engage in discussions relating to the setting and maintenance of awarding
standards from very soon after appointment.

Within responsibility for awarding, a major issue is that Qualifications Wales will need
to set a clear policy from the outset on setting and maintaining awarding standards.
Whilst the “comparable outcomes” approach is currently favoured within the three-
regulator framework for GCSEs and GCEs, the implications of continuing with this
need to be fully explored and understood. This approach is currently implemented
on the basis of “comparable statistical outcomes” in terms of percentages of each
year’s cohort, which of course is not necessarily the same as “comparable standards
of performance” from year to year. This distinction is particularly important when a
new qualification is introduced to succeed a previous version. Much work will need
to be undertaken to establish an appropriate methodology for setting and maintaining
standards for Wales’ qualifications and this will need to be supported by a robust and
transparent communications strategy in order to provide the high level of confidence
necessary when establishing new high stakes qualifications.

Awarding organisations themselves have responsibilities for implementing a full
range of processes relating to awarding, which interface with the high volume work
involved in developing, issuing and marking examinations and moderating teacher
assessments. In considering an effective organisational model for Qualifications
Wales, it would seem to be important to avoid the inefficiencies which would arise
through any duplication of the awarding work in which awarding organisations
engage, the latter including checking and ratification of awards. In fact, as a
regulator that may need to scrutinise matters relating to awarding, it will be important
for Qualifications Wales to retain its independence from the awarding work
undertaken by an awarding organisation.

It will be important for Qualifications Wales to establish itself within the community of
gualifications regulators, given that there are technical matters from which there is
much to be gained from shared dialogue. The major awarding organisations find that
there is much to be gained from the JCQ®' network of which they are members.
Qualifications Wales will find that as an independendent regulator it is better able to
make the most of these wider opportunities for engagement.

2. “What good practice can be adopted from other countries on separating the
roles of exam regulator and awarding organisation within one body?”

Policies do not necessarily transfer readily from one country to another, not least
because countries’ circumstances tend to be very different from each other. It is also
the case that there are not any examples of an examinations regulator and an
awarding organisation existing within one body that are relevant to Wales’ specific
circumstances, in which:
¢ there are high stakes general qualifications at age 16 as well as at age 18
e such qualifications use brands (GCSE and GCE) that have to date been
associated with regulation that is independent of awarding organisations
e qualifications under those brands will continue to be independently regulated
in a large neighbouring country.

Pack Page 15



The priority therefore is to establish in Wales an independent regulator that is
capable of addressing, to the satisfaction of stakeholders, the very significant
regulatory challenges which exist in the qualifications environment. This requires
independence from government (see also section 3.1) and from awarding
organisations as well as complete clarity as to the respective roles of Qualification
Wales and awarding bodies in relation to quality assurance and complementary
aspects of the awarding function.

Assuming that Qualifications Wales is set up in autumn 2015, this will be at a time
when the most major reform programme for general qualifications ever undertaken in
Wales is scheduled to be two thirds of the way towards completion. The first tranche
of reformed GCSEs and GCEs, as well as the reformed Welsh Baccalaureate, will
have been accredited during 2014 for first teaching from September 2015, the
second tranche will have been submitted to the Welsh Government for accreditation
in the summer of 2015 ahead of teaching from September 2016, and major policy
decisions will need to have been made by early 2015 in relation to the remaining
general qualifications that are to be reformed for teaching from 2017. WJEC would
suggest that considerable work also needs to be undertaken in relation to a policy for
IVET qualifications (see section 4) ahead of the time when Qualifications Wales is set

up.

During the current first tranche of qualifications reform (for teaching from 2015),
some good practice should have emerged in relation to the ways in which a

regulator (currently the Welsh Government ) can work with awarding organisations
(mainly WJEC, but also some others) on policies which address a Wales agenda. As
well as informing working arrangements for the second tranche of reform
(qualifications for teaching from 2016), this should also be drawn on by Qualifications
Wales in establishing its own ways of working.

Amongst Qualifications Wales’ immediate tasks will be establishing policies that will
underpin the awarding standards to be used by awarding organisations for the
reformed AS qualifications in Wales (to be awarded for the first time in summer 2016)
and also accreditation during summer 2016 of the third tranche of reformed GCSEs
and GCEs (for teaching from 2017). For both these tasks, achieving clarity and
independence of the respective roles of Qualifications Wales and awarding
organisations will be fundamentally important.

3. “Will the relationships between Qualifications Wales (and awarding
organisations including the WJEC in the short term) and the Welsh
Government work effectively?

3.1 Relationship between Qualifications Wales and the Welsh Government

There is no a priori reason why the relationship between Qualifications Wales and
the Welsh Government should not work effectively, but in order to create as
favourable a climate as possible for this relationship there is a need for clarity from
the outset regarding respective remits.

For example, it may well be that the Welsh Government retains responsibility for
overall curriculum policy including for the 14-19 age range. This could include the
determination of taught content in “core” subject areas. The government should also
retain the overall lead on high level policy in relation to qualifications, e.g. whether
there should be regulated qualifications aimed at the 14-16 age group and whether

Pack Page 16



there should be a Baccalaureate style qualification. The Welsh Government would
clearly retain the responsibility for resourcing the education system and for
monitoring the performance of elements within that system: hence the government
would need to decide on how to make appropriate use of data relating to qualification
outcomes within performance measures.

It would be natural for Qualifications Wales, as regulator, to take responsibility for:
recognising awarding organisations and monitoring their work, for accrediting
gualifications in terms of specifications (syllabuses) and specimen assessment
materials (this provides a major regulatory lever in terms of compliance and quality
assurance). Qualifications Wales would also take overall responsibility for
determining the general approach to be taken by awarding organisations in setting
and maintaining standards. At times of qualifications reform, Qualifications Wales
would have a key role to play in managing overall system risk, especially in relation
to the interests of candidates and wider stakeholders. The independence of the
regulator from government is vitally important in relation to matters relating to
standards and overall risk in the system.

There are several "grey areas" for which it is debatable whether the Welsh
Government or Qualifications Wales should lead. These might include the overall
policy for Wales in relation to whether general qualifications should be linear or
unitised, the extent to which qualifications for the 14-16 age group should be tiered,
the nature of the grading systems that should be used, and the extent to which
teacher-assessed elements should be included within the overall assessment
schemes of 14-19 qualifications. Even if government considered that it should be the
decision-maker on such matters, it would seem sensible for it to at least take advice
from its qualifications regulator, given that there are significant “technical’
considerations which relate to each of these.

3.2 Relationship between awarding organisations and the Welsh Government

Even with an independent qualifications regulator in place in Wales, the direct
relationship between awarding organisations (including WJEC) and government will
continue to be important. This is currently evidenced by the importance of the Welsh
Government curriculum team’s contribution to discussions relating to GCSE
gualifications reform, and is paralleled by the importance of the contribution of the
DfE at Westminster to equivalent discussions in England.

Also, there are important contributions which awarding organisations make to the
provision of continuing professional development opportunities for teachers and to
the development and publication of teaching and learning resources. These are
matters which have a policy interface that can be broader than that of the
gualifications regulator, especially in the bilingual context of the education system in
Wales within which WJEC plays a significant role.

Awarding organisations (including WJEC) would therefore typically expect to have
positive and constructive engagement with relevant policy teams in the Welsh
Government both in the short and medium term after the establishment of
Qualifications Wales.

Pack Page 17



4. “What will be the impact of Qualifications Wales on the accreditation of
vocational qualifications (including apprenticeships)?”

Within the context of the Review of Qualifications recommendation that Wales should
develop an approach to vocational qualifications that is based on the European
convention of IVET and CVET, it would seem likely that the CVET (continuing
vocational education and training) area will remain geared towards the use of
gualifications that are commonly used across the UK. It therefore becomes important
that Qualifications Wales should establish itself as an organisation that is well able to
represent the perspective and interests of Wales alongside those other regulators
who are involved in regulating these qualifications within their respective jurisdictions
(Ofqual, SQA and possibly, in the future, CCEA).

However, in relation to the IVET (initial vocational education and training) area, it is
WJEC'’s view that there is very considerable scope for Qualifications Wales to work
with awarding organisations and sectoral stakeholders to develop a national suite of
IVET qualifications that draws on the best European practice of successfully blending
the IVET vocational experience with the general education that is provided for the
same learners. The Welsh Baccalaureate provides a very appropriate framework for
doing this, ensuring that IVET learning programmes in Wales are designed to lead to
high class qualifications that provide an assured progression route to more
occupationally specific CVET programmes of learning as well as allowing young
people to choose more general progression routes.

5. Conclusion

In the context of WJEC’s experience as an awarding organisation operating on a
significant scale in two of the countries that are within the current three-regulator
framework, the matters which require very careful consideration in the context of
establishing Qualifications Wales include the following:

e establishing effective and efficient ways of working between the new regulator
and those awarding organisations, including WJEC, that are committed to
serving the needs of Wales through the development and delivery of general
and vocational qualifications

e recognise how the complementary strengths and capacities of awarding
organisations and a regulator can work together to best effect, even when the
former are regulated by the latter

e establish appropriate mechanisms for securing the availability of high quality
qualifications that meet Wales’ policy requirements, including addressing the
needs of areas of learning where qualification provision is not straightforward
if reliant on the “market” providing

e achieve clarity in defining a “responsibility for awarding” that focuses on the
policies and practices that underpin the arrangements for setting and
maintaining the standards of qualifications in Wales.

Gareth Pierce
Chief Executive, WJEC
April 2014

Pack Page 18



Agenda Item 3

National Assembly for Wales

Children, Young People and Education Committee
Pre Legislative scrutiny of the Qualification (Wales) Bill
Evidence from : Huw Evans

CYPE(4)-12-14 - Paper 2

Presentation to the children, Young People and Education Committee from
‘Qualifications Wales’

Introduction

Recommendations from the Review of Qualifications, of which | was Chair,
included the establishment of ‘Qualification Wales’; a new independent
qualifications body for Wales. | was subsequently invited by the Minister to
Chair an independent Advisory Board to establish ‘Qualification Wales’. This
role was to operate alongside a clear communication strategy and engagement
process to disseminate the qualification reform programme in Wales.

The Advisory Board, supported by the Welsh Government Transition team,
have worked to a demanding timescale. This has involved advising on the
nature of the organisation, its functions and its operational structure including
the future relationship with the Welsh Government.

The views | express are shaped by my ongoing exposure to diverse stakeholder
groups and the considered opinion and advice of the Advisory Board. To this is
added the large body of qualification based evidence that has been collated over
the period of review.

Outlining the vision

‘Qualification Wales’ will be the key driver for delivering an innovative,
flexible and rigorous approach to qualifications in Wales. However it must be
seen in parallel to the evolving qualification reforms which are presently
ongoing.

The need for such a national body has been clearly articulated from the research
and evidence undertaken. In order to realise the opportunities inherent in a
devolved educational system, there is a need to improve:

o alignment with the needs of industry
e attainment of young people including standards of literacy and numeracy
o higher level skills for progression to higher education.

Pack Page 19



These national priorities can only be realised by creating a focus for such
change, improving transparency and injecting a high level of accountability
within an independent framework.

‘Qualification Wales’ will have the remit for creating a qualification system that
Is both valued and understood not only by the people of Wales but worldwide.

Does the proposed vision and remit for Qualifications Wales present an
effective organisational model?

The Review of Qualifications clearly outlined the need for Wales to take control
of its qualifications and to establish a new national body, ‘Qualifications
Wales’, to undertake regulatory, quality assurance and awarding functions. It
also envisaged that the longer term aim would be to develop a body similar in
operation to the SQA (Scottish Qualifications Authority) body as a potential
model for future development.

The vision required a potential merger with the WJEC, the dominant awarding
body for general qualifications operational in Wales. This would have enabled
both the awarding function and the regulatory function to come together in a
cost effective manner, minimising the start-up costs for ‘Qualification Wales’.
Early discussions revealed the clear determination of the WJEC to retain its
independence and identified a philosophical divide, which allied to the potential
for legal challenge, made the initial vision very difficult to achieve. This
situation was reluctantly accepted by the Advisory Board in the interests of a
smooth transition.

The Advisory Board are committed to a single qualifications body and feel
assured that the proposed legislation will establish ‘Qualifications Wales’ with
responsibility for both the regulation of awarding bodies and the quality
assurance of qualifications in Wales. Practical and risk based considerations
have suggested the need for an incremental approach to change whilst retaining
the long term vision of a single qualifications body.

In the first instance,” Qualifications Wales’ will not be a fully-fledged awarding
body but will take responsibility for the design, development and awarding of
its own suite of qualifications by commissioning one or more awarding bodies
to perform these functions on its behalf. Initially these commissioned
qualifications are likely to be GCSEs, A levels and the Welsh Baccalaureate.
Other qualifications will be added over time.

Most vocational qualifications will continue to be developed and delivered as
they are now by a range of awarding bodies. ‘Qualifications Wales’ will
introduce new gatekeeping procedures to ensure that qualifications are fit for

Pack Page 20



purpose and meet the needs of Wales. New stakeholder arrangements will be
introduced based on new Advisory Groups to build in currency and relevance. It
Is also envisaged that qualifications that form part of the apprenticeship
experience should also be integral to the regulatory/quality assurance work of
‘Qualifications Wales’ to provide parity and standardisation.

‘Qualifications Wales’ will not only become the single expert authority on
qualifications in Wales developing policy, undertaking research, providing
support where required but will become the main source of data on
qualifications. When established, one of its key objectives will be to establish
credibility and trust in the operation of qualifications in Wales. It will develop
new ways of working based on transparency, engagement and on-going
dialogue with key stakeholders. Where justifiable, ‘Qualification Wales’ will
seek to prioritise Welsh medium and bilingual provision in both academic and
vocational provision.

Independence is seen as integral to the future success of the organisation and the
integrity of the examinations system in Wales. Its Board and Chair will be
appointed via recognised public appointment procedures and will be expected to
operate as a high performing expert Board. It is envisaged that the Advisory
Board will continue to provide a ‘steer’ to March 2015 when the ‘Shadow
Board’ becomes operational. It is also proposed that that the governance
structure will include an influential and representative stakeholder group to
advise the Board.

In this context, the early appointment of the CEO designate is seen as essential
to provide the continuity and strategic direction required in establishing and
overseeing the transitional functions necessary to establish an effective
independent body. Organisationally, this will require the transfer of a significant
number of staff from the Qualifications division of the Welsh Government and
the establishment of the appropriate infrastructure including corporate services.

‘Qualifications Wales’ will be accountable to the Welsh Ministers and the
National Assembly for Wales for its expenditure and the implementation of its
gualifications functions.

What good practice can be adopted from other countries on separating the
roles of exam regulator and awarding organisation within one body?

Visits and studies have been undertaken to investigate the qualifications systems
in other countries including Scotland, Republic of Ireland and Denmark. What
was clear in all of these visits is that there is no one universal system that can be
adopted but there were areas of good practice that Wales could draw on. Each
country has evolved its own qualifications system in response to a particular

Pack Page 21



need, its history and location. The size of the country and the complexity of its
economy are also influencing factors as each country attempted to tackle over
complexity in the examinations system and drive rigour and standards as a clear
national target.

The Scottish Qualifications Authority, SQA is a single national body for
qualifications which combines two distinct roles into one. The larger part of
SQA fulfils the awarding function for the qualifications taken by learners in
maintained schools in Scotland and interacts directly, as a professional
independent body, with the Scottish Government which provides core funding
(as the Welsh Government will provide funding to ‘Qualifications Wales’).

The school-based examinations are not regulated by the regulatory or, as it is
known, the ‘accreditation’ arm of SQA: that arm is concerned with the
qualifications offered by other bodies. So, in the case of Scotland, its schools-
based qualifications are not in fact regulated — they are simply, and effectively,
designed, delivered and awarded by SQA as a national body with strong quality
assurance systems. Welsh Government officials who spent some days with SQA
officials last year, were impressed both by the strength of the quality assurance
processes and by the extent to which SQA engaged continuously with teachers
across Scotland at all stages of the qualification life cycle.

A fact-finding visit to the Republic of Ireland learned that a new single
qualifications body had been established. The Quality and Qualifications
Ireland (QQI) however was focused almost entirely on vocational qualifications.
The schools-based qualifications involved two other qualifications bodies — the
National Council for Curriculum and Assessment (NCCA) and the State
Examinations Council (SEC).

The role of NCCA and the SEC bears some similarity to the current proposals
for Qualifications Wales in that NCCA is responsible for determining the
content and nature of assessment of the schools based qualifications (as
Qualifications Wales will be) while SEC delivers and administers the
examinations as determined by NCCA.. Parallels could be drawn between the
potential future relationship between Qualifications Wales and the WJEC (and
possibly other awarding bodies).

Several interesting lessons have been learned from Ireland: the national sense of
ownership of the single suite of qualifications on offer — with all learners across
Ireland taking the same examination for each subject and the extent to which
Ireland relates to European initiatives such as credit and qualifications
frameworks.

Pack Page 22



All of the countries visited placed a high value on their qualifications system.
There was also a high level of trust with built in quality assurance as opposed to
regulatory powers. Over reliance on regulation is seen as a UK/England
approach to managing complexity and variable standards within the
qualifications market. Historically, Wales has been part of this process as it has
been so closely aligned.

In all the countries visited there was far greater alignment to the European
qualification systems and the use of the European Qualification frameworks.
This approach may well provide new direction for opportunities for
‘Qualifications Wales’.

Will the relationships between Qualifications Wales (and awarding
organisations including the WJEC in the short term) and the Welsh
Government work effectively?

Clearly the Chief Executive for ‘Qualifications Wales’, the Chair and the Board,
once appointed, will have a key responsibility for ensuring that relationships
with the Welsh Government (and with the National Assembly) and with all
awarding bodies, including the WJEC, are effective.

There are a number of mechanisms by which such relationships will be
supported and these include:

o the development of effective legislation which clearly sets out the
respective duties and powers of the Welsh Government and
Qualifications Wales;

o the establishment of an effective sponsorship unit to manage
relationships between the Welsh Government and Qualifications
Wales;

¢ the implementation of an effective organisational structure which
supports core functions;

e regular dialogue between the Welsh Ministers and Qualifications
Wales;

e full and informative reporting to the National Assembly by
Qualifications Wales;

¢ the development of dual controls of a contractual relationship
between Qualifications Wales and awarding bodies to design,
develop and deliver the Wales-specific suite of qualifications and
of the regulatory and quality assurance controls over the awarding
bodies and the qualifications awarding process;

Pack Page 23



¢ the development of an effective communication strategy involving
all stakeholders.

What will be the impact of Qualifications Wales on the accreditation of
vocational qualifications (including apprenticeships)?

‘Qualifications Wales’ will have responsibility (as the Welsh Ministers
currently do) for the approval of vocational qualifications in Wales —
particularly where they are approved as eligible for use on publicly funded
programmes of education and training.

‘Qualifications Wales’ will have responsibility for the regulation of awarding
bodies offering these qualifications and for the quality assurance of the
qualifications themselves — adopting a risk based approach to regulation.

It will be essential that ‘Qualifications Wales’ liaises extensively with
employers and sectors to ensure that those qualifications deemed to be fit for
purpose for use in Wales are confirmed to meet the needs of employers — that
the skills and knowledge required are valid and current, that the assessment
methodology is appropriate and that progression routes into employment are
clear. The new Advisory Boards are seen as being the effective sector based
interface.

Discussions are still underway about the exact nature of ‘Qualifications Wales’
future responsibilities in relation to apprenticeships but it seems sensible that
‘Qualifications Wales’ should have a responsibility for expressing a view on the
appropriateness of the qualifications selected for use in apprenticeships. These
qualifications must have sector credibility and develop to the same rigorous
standards as any other qualifications made available for study in Wales.

Conclusion

In the first instance it is expected that Qualifications Wales will be established
as an independent body by summer 2015. The new body will drive the
qualification system for Wales providing qualifications that are fit for purpose
and delivered in an efficient manner. It will assume responsibility for the
regulation and quality assurance of qualifications delivered in Wales in a non-
degree context. By summer 2017, the recommendations proposed in the Review
of Qualifications will, in the main, be implemented and be the responsibility of
‘Qualification Wales’.

The Body will acquire a commissioning responsibility for qualifications
resulting in a redefined relationship with awarding bodies. This will enable it to

Pack Page 24



build confidence and trust in its operations and meet the needs of young people
and the Welsh economy.

It will develop the functions associated with becoming the national authority on
qualifications and will demonstrate innovation and high performance practices
leading to robust high quality qualifications.

All the engagement undertaken to date via schools, universities, employers and
other stakeholders all indicate clear support for the direction of travel and the
manner in which it has been undertaken. This must continue and must include
the development of a more responsive support infrastructure for the provider
network including schools, colleges and work based providers.

As stated earlier, the Advisory Board members retain a clear long-term vision
for ‘Qualification Wales’ to become the awarding body for the majority of
qualifications undertaken. This it seeks to achieve in an incremental manner,
building on strengths and responding effectively to the needs of young people in
Wales.

| would like to take the opportunity to thanks colleagues from the Advisory
Board and the Welsh Government for continued support during this period of
implementation.

Huw Evans OBE

Chair of the Qualifications Wales Advisory Board

Pack Page 25



CYPE(4)-11-13 - Paper 3

Agenda Iltem 4

FFEDERASIWN HYFFORDDIARM
CENEDLAETHOL CYMRI

| ( NI A

FEDERATION WALES

Developing the Network to Deliver Excellence in Vocational Skills
Datblygu'r Rhwydwaith i Gyflawni Rhagoriaeth mewn Sgiliau Galwedigaethol

Submission to the Children, Young People and Education Committee

Pre-legislative Scrutiny of the Qualification (Wales) Bill

Jeff Protheroe
Operations Manager
25 April 2014

Pack Page 26



Introduction

1. The National Training Federation for Wales (NTfW) is a membership
organisation of over one hundred organisations involved in the delivery of
learning in the workplace. It is a Wales wide representative body for all those
organisations or individuals involved in the training industry. Members range
from small specialist training providers to national and international
organisations, as well as Local Authorities, Further Education Institutions and
third sector organisations.

2. The NTfW represents the interests of learners, employers and learning
providers across Wales and aims inform them about all aspects of the
education and training agenda.

3. Members work across Wales in rural, urban, bi-lingual and Welsh
medium settings, and have strong links with over 35,000 employers across
Wales ranging from small enterprises through medium sized companies to large
multi-nationals and public sector organisations.

4. The NTfW maintains close working relationships with Welsh Government
Ministers, Welsh Assembly Members, the Department for Education and Skills,
Careers Wales, Jobcentre Plus and Sector Skills Councils.

Aim

5. The aim of this Submission Paper is to provide evidence to the Children,
Young People and Education Committee ahead of a planned meeting which will
take place at the Sennedd on Wednesday 7" May 2014.

Background

6. Over recent months, NTfW (and its members) have been actively
engaged in consultation exercises surrounding the development of
gualifications for 14-19 year-olds in Wales, and the proposals to establish a new
gualifications body for Wales (Qualifications Wales). The evidence in this
Submission Paper is drawn from our various Consultation Responses, and is
based on the broad areas of focus of the Committee’s pre-legislative scrutiny.

a. Is the proposed vision and remit for Qualifications Wales an
effective organisational model? Yes. NTfW fully embraces the vision
set out for Qualifications Wales.

b. What good practice can be adopted from other countries on
separating the roles of exam regulator and awarding organisation
within one body? Unsure. NTfW does not feel qualified to make a
comment on this, but we have confidence in the fact that work has been
undertaken by Welsh Government officials and members of the
Qualifications Wales Review Board, to identify areas of good practice
from across the UK and further afield.

Pack Page 27



C.

Will the relationship between Qualifications Wales (and

awarding organisations including the WJEC in the short term) and
the Welsh Government work effectively? Yes, if managed correctly.

d.

(1)  NTfW welcomes the fact that regulation will be independent
of government, but that accountability will be maintained by the
National Assembly for Wales (NAW). However, in our response to
the Our Qualifications — Our Future consultation, we highlighted
our desire to see the proposed Qualifications Wales’ Annual
Report to be closely linked to other key reports about the
educations and training sector, most notably, Estyn’s Chief
Inspector’s Annual Report.

(2)  With regards to the relationship between awarding
organisations (in the short term) and the Welsh Government,
NTfW would urge caution in how these relationships are
managed. It is recognised that there are 5 awarding organisations
that offer General Qualifications (GQs) in Wales, but over 120
offering Vocational Qualifications (VQs). NTfW would like to see
the choice of awarding organisation stay with the provider, as it is
felt that this not only ensures established systems, and ways of
working are maintained, but it is also felt that no one awarding
organisation can offer the broad spectrum of specialisms required
to work across the various (employment) sectors. Furthermore,
NTfW feels that there is a risk to how we ensure awarding
organisations continue to invest in the development of
gualifications for Wales, which are specific to Wales.

(3) In terms of building relationships with other key
stakeholders, NTfW has urged Qualifications Wales to link its work
with other bodies within the education and training landscape in
Wales, such as the General Teaching Council for Wales (or as
proposed, the Education Workforce Council) an Estyn.

What will be the impact of Qualifications Wales on the

accreditation of vocational qualifications (including
Apprenticeships)? This is as yet unknown, but it is hoped that it will be
a positive one.

(1) NTfW would welcome (strongly) an increasing role for
Qualifications Wales in the area of Apprenticeships, and would
particularly welcome Qualifications Wales becoming the ‘Issuing
Authority’ for Apprenticeship Frameworks in Wales.

(2)  Within the context of WBL, particularly in the design and
delivery of future Apprenticeships, a considerable amount of
change is proposed, which could see a great deal of divergence
between England and Wales. With this in mind, Qualifications
Wales is urged to keep a close eye on developments, and ensure
that any potential negative impacts are minimised.

Pack Page 28



Summary

3) NTfW notes that part of the vision for Qualifications Wales
is to ‘strengthen public confidence in, and information about,
qualifications in Wales.” We also note that as part of
Qualifications Wales’ functions and activities that it will play is role
in ensuring ‘fitness of purpose’ for all of the qualifications it is
responsible for. Increasingly, “employers are shouting about the
importance of employability and life/work skills” and NTfW urges
Qualifications Wales to ensure that all qualifications are
scrutinised (as part of the quality assurance process) to ensure
they offer the ‘employability’ skills required by the intended user
I.e. the employer. Itis felt that in order to make this a reality,
Qualifications Wales needs to develop a close working
relationship with the soon to be established Sector Qualifications
Advisory Panels (SQAPS) to ensure that any current, or future,
VQs are ‘it for purpose’ in terms of meeting employer demand.

(4) In its response to the Review of Qualifications for 14-19
year olds in Wales consultation, NTfW wholeheartedly welcomed
the move to initial vocational education and training (IVET)
qualifications and continuing education and vocational (CVET)
qualifications. However, it is felt by NTfW that there is an
extremely low level of understanding of IVET / CVET qualifications
amongst not only ‘wider stakeholders’ i.e. parents, employers etc.,
but more importantly (and worryingly) amongst key Information,
Advice and Guidance (IAG) practitioners as well. It is felt that
Qualifications Wales should play an important part in explaining
the qualifications system in Wales to all stakeholders, and that it
should become the single source of information for all (less HE)
gualifications in Wales. However, it is vitally important that any
Communication Strategy has the flexibility to ensure that the
messages are targeted towards the intended audience, be that
practitioners, parents, (potential) learners and/or employers.

(5)  Within the context of Work-based Learning (WBL) many
providers work across (geographical) borders. One of the issues
faced by providers with this is the lack of ‘portability’ of
gualifications across these borders. Similarly, as most WBL work
with school leavers, there are also issues of ‘portability’ between
qualification systems i.e. there are no ‘proxy qualifications’ for
Essential Skills Wales (ESW) qualifications. This creates the
situation, where the learner feels that they are doing the same
gualification twice.

7. Due to our scope and remit, NTfW feels suitably placed to offer evidence
in regards to the establishment of a single body to be responsible for the
regulation and quality assurance of non-degree qualifications, which is separate
from Government, but answerable to the National Assembly. Furthermore,
NTfW (and its members) have been active stakeholders is all recent
consultations in regards to the changing qualifications landscape in Wales.
Overall, NTfW is very supportive of the proposals to establish a new

Pack Page 29



qualifications body for Wales (Qualifications Wales) However, we feel that
more could, and should, be done by Qualifications Wales to ensure that VQs
and Apprenticeships delivered here in Wales are ‘fit for purpose,’ in order that
they meet the needs of the intended users, most notably employers.

Pack Page 30



CYPE(4)-12-14 - Paper to Note 4

Agenda Iltem 5.1

Barnardo's
Cymru

Children, Young People and Education Committee Inquiry into
CAMH services additional information

Additional information in response to the request that we expand on
our evidence that specialist CAMHS closed cases of young people who
were receiving support from Barnardo’s Cymru Seraf (Child Sexual
Exploitation) and Taith (Sexually Harmful Behaviour) specialist
services.

The key issues illustrated by the following case examples are:

e Taith have had a nhumber of experiences of being informed by
Social Services that CAMHS are not prepared to take up the case
if the case is being worked with by Taith. So this information is
coming from Social Service referrers and not directly from CAMH
services.

e Social services are often the service commissioner of Seraf and
Taith services, and the social worker can play a pivotal role in
communicating information and gate-keeping the involvement,
or not, of Taith and Seraf practitioners in the care and treatment
planning process.

e The current practice culture and environment of specialist tier 2
CAMHS means they can not always be flexible enough to be
accessible to some young people with a diagnosis of personality
disorder.

The services gave some examples of cases where the practice
and the outcomes for the service user had been less successful:

e Seraf service presented a case of a 17 year old whom they
worked with in 2010. This was prior to the implementation phase
of the care and treatment planning process introduced by the
Mental Health Measure. The young person was assessed as
having a personality disorder but found it difficult to engage with
CAMHS and the service was ceased. The young person was
informed by the CAMHS service that they had closed the case
and a re referral would need to be made via the GP. The young
person went to the GP and a re referral was made but the young
person, again, failed to engage. The Seraf practitioner contacted
CAMHS and was provided with advice and guidance by CAMHS

Pack Page 31



on support services that the young person could access in the
local community. The Seraf practitioner concluded that the
services CAMHS were offering were not flexible enough to meet
the needs of the young person. There were no plans in place to
support the young person to engage with AMHS. The young
person continues to receive medication via her GP

We also have a case example from a service working with care leavers
of a young person who had been admitted to a mental health unit not
being given a diagnosis. The reason given was that to diagnose would
be unhelpful for the young person, however the CSM was also
concerned that a diagnosis was not forthcoming as the young person,
who she thought might have a personality disorder, would then be
eligible for a service from CAMHS. Without a diagnosis the
responsibility remained primarily with social services.

Seraf and Taith services are primarily commissioned by social services,
so it may be that they get caught in the organisational politics between
social services and CAMHS where there are sometimes difficult
discussions to be had with regard to how the presentation of emotional
and mental health problems manifest and which service is best placed
to address these issues.

e Taith presented a case of an adolescent boy whom they joint
worked with YOT. Both services agreed that the boy required a
referral to the Community tier 2 CAMH service as they were
concerned about the boy’s persistent emotional
disconnectedness from his crimes and the impact on his victims,
and suspect that he may have psychopathic traits. The CAMHS
team eventually assessed the boy on the second referral and
decided that he did not have a diagnosable mental health
disorder. Both YOT and Taith staff as well as professionals from
social services and education remain concerned and the YOT
CAMHS practitioner has now made a referral to the tier 4 FACS
team

With this second case the services involved which include the YOT, the
police, Taith and education were disappointed that CAMHS were unable
to recognise the seriousness of the case, own it and, if necessary refer
it on. In the event the CAMHS team left the case with the YOT CAMHS
practitioner to refer on the FACS team. It may be more difficult to
have this case prioritised by the FACS team without the support of
specialist community CAMHS.

Pack Page 32



Both services also gave examples of co-working cases
alongside CAMHS teams which were effective:

Taith case

This example illustrates the positive impact of having a Care and
Treatment planning process in place within a Tier 2 Specialist CAMH
team. This example is also one where there are good working
relationships in place between the CAMHS practitioners and Taith
practitioners.

This is the case of a young boy who, at the point of referral to Taith,
was being treated within CAMHS for ADHD. During the course of his
treatment with Taith he became very depressed and there were
concerns due to suicidal feelings that were being expressed.

Taith were able to offer some support with the depression and worked
with the parents to instigate some strategies for keeping him safe.
However as the concerns grew it was felt that the family would need
more intensive support with managing the suicidal tendencies and
behaviour.

Taith flagged their concerns to CAMHS who carried out an assessment
of the boys mental health and put a Care and Treatment Plan in place.
Strategy meetings were established, to which all stakeholders were
invited and, in the words of the Taith service manager '‘CAMHS took
ownership of the case’. The Care and Treatment planning meetings
gave agencies an opportunity to think together about the needs of this
boy and his family. Taith and CAMHS were the two key players in
terms of delivering service to the family at this stage. It was identified
that the boy had an autistic spectrum disorder, which had been an
underlying issue in his sexual offending. He was referred for a
Statement of Special Educational Need and the CAMHS evidence
played a key part in securing this. The boy is now placed in a specialist
education unit and the family and the boy have expressed their
gratitude to the joint work that CAMHS and Taith carried out in those
early stages to address his, then rapidly spiralling, problems.

Seraf case
Seraf gave an example of a 14 year old they worked with in 2012 who
was also receiving a service from CAMHS due to depression and self-

harm. By this time the care and treatment planning process was being
implemented. The CAMHS team worked in partnership with Seraf

Pack Page 33



advising what work they were undertaking to ensure no work was
duplicated and that the young person was not overloaded. The Seraf
service were not part of the Care and Treatment planning process but
believe the Social Worker was linked in and had this information.

Additional information with regard to Keith Davies question
(Para 268) at 11.45 in the transcript.

We felt that although referring to the Welsh Governments Participation
Standards we did not fully respond to the Children’s Human Rights
element of Keith’s question.

The importance of developing and designing services with service user
involvement is undeniably beneficial, however, it would be welcome if
CAMHS provisions, including assessment and diagnosis, were clearly
linked to the role of appropriate mental health support in the
protection and promotion of a child’s human rights of protection,
survival and development as well as participation.

Throughout our written and oral evidence we made reference to the
under resourcing of CAMH services and suggest it would be an
interesting question to ask if any Children’s Rights Impact Assessment
has been done in relation to resource decisions.

Menna Thomas

Barnardo’s Cymru
April 2014

Pack Page 34



CYPE(4)-12-14 - Paper to Note 5

Agendgalienm, 5.2
Huw Lewis AC / AM R VA
Y Gweinidog Addysg a Sgiliau A / "\/g

Minister for Education and Skills

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

Ein cyf/Our ref SF/HL/0112/14

Ann Jones AM

Chair

Children, Young People and Education Committee
National Assembly for Wales

Cardiff

29 April 2014

Dear Ann,

Inquiry into Educational Outcomes of Children from Low-Income Households
Thank you for your letter of 3 April 2014 in relation to the above inquiry.

I will respond to the points you raise in the order they appear in your correspondence.

‘Double disadvantage effect’

It is the case that certain groups experience ‘double disadvantage’. For example, free
school meal entitlement for Gypsy, Traveller and black African children is well over three
times the national average.

These pupils are eligible for support funded by the Pupil Deprivation Grant. Minority ethnic
pupils are also eligible for support from the Minority Ethnic Achievement Grant (MEAG),
while Gypsy and Traveller children are supported by the Grant for the Education of Gypsy
and Traveller Children (GT grant). These two grants total £11.1million in 2014-15. | have
ring fenced this funding to ensure it goes directly to these learner groups. Both the MEAG
and the GT grants enable local authorities to reach out to some of the most disadvantaged
and marginalised learners.

EU Roma children are recognised as having dual needs, English as an additional language
and the support needs of being from travelling families, and as such are eligible for support
funded by both the MEAG and GT grant. Asylum seekers are amongst those recognised as
needing higher levels of support and they receive the highest weighting under the MEAG
funding formula used to determine annual grant awards. It is possible, therefore, for some
disadvantaged pupils to be supported by the PDG, the MEAG and the GT grant, reflecting
their high level of need.

Bae Caerdydd « Cardiff Bay English Enquiry Line 0845 010 3300
Caerdydd « Cardiff Ltinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg 0845 010 4400
CF99 1NA Correspondence.Huw.Lewis@Wales.gsi.gov.uk

Wedi’i argraffu ar bapur wedi’i ailgylchu PR P age 35 Printed on 100% recycled paper




Parental engagement

Research confirms that parents and carers have a vital role to play in supporting their child’s
education. | agree wholeheartedly with your conclusion that there is a pressing need for us
to help schools devise and implement evidence based strategies to better engage all
parents in their children’s learning from the earliest possible age - in particular those in
lower income groups who may be harder to reach.

With this in mind, we intend to publish specific guidance for schools on how to develop their
own parental and community engagement strategies later this year. Alongside side that we
will also be developing a resource pack for schools of programmes delivered by, or in
partnership with, well respected community and third sector organisations, many of which
focus on parental engagement. Both of these initiatives should be in place later this
summer.

We are also developing a high profile media campaign aimed at parents in Wales to
communicate the simple message that taking an interest counts. Beginning shortly, the
campaign will use a range of communication channels to raise awareness of the message
and illustrate how parents can get involved. The campaign will also develop information,
suitable for a variety of communication vehicles, which can be used by schools, LAs and
consortia which will ensure a consistent message across Wales. The campaign will
complement existing parental campaign work currently being undertaken by my officials on
literacy and numeracy.

[ believe it is vitally important that we work closely with key third sector colleagues delivering
in this field. With that in mind, we have commissioned Achievement for All o adapt its 3 As
Schools Programme for use in Wales. This is a well evaluated programme with a strong
track-record of improving outcomes for vulnerable pupils. One of its key themes is
“Empowering and engaging parents in their children’s learning to raise attainment”.

Achievement for all Cymru will work in partnership with the recently established Wales
Centre for Equity in Education as well as our four Education consortia. Their programme is
being piloted in 14 schools in the central south consortium area and we are already
receiving extremely positive feedback from the pilot schools

Education cosfts

In England and Wales, in schools other than independent schools the education provided
wholly or mainly during school hours is free. Schools may not charge for activities if the
activity is required as part of the National Curriculum, or part of a syllabus for a prescribed
public examination that the pupil is being prepared for at the school.

Although schools cannot charge for school time activities, there is nothing in law to prevent
a school governing body or local authority asking parents and others to make voluntary
contributions for the benefit of the school or to fund school activities. All requests to parents
for voluntary contributions must make it clear that the contribution is voluntary; and that
there is no obligation to make a contribution. The governing body or head teacher must also
make it clear that children of parents who do not contribute will not be treated any
differently.

A school may not charge parents for anything unless the governing body has adopted a
charging policy. The policy will give details of the circumstances in which the school will
charge parents and in what circumstances it may ask for voluntary contributions. The policy

Pack Page 36



should also explain any circumstances in which the school will wholly, or partially, waive the
charge. This should be available from the school.

The Welsh Government’s ‘Guidance for Governing Bodies on Charging for School Activities’
has been written to help head teachers and governing bodies to set out their policies on
charges and remissions for school activities and school visits. It provides a policy view and
interpretation of the relevant law from the Welsh Government. However, it is not legal
advice, the guidance is non-statutory and therefore cannot be enforced, but the Welsh
Government would encourage schools to have regard to the guidance when dealing with
issues relating to charging and remission for school activities and school visits. The
guidance can be accessed from:

http://wales.gov.uk/topics/educationandskills/publications/quidance/charginagforschoolactiviti
es/?lang=en

2017 Foundation Phase target

When the current target for reducing the attainment gap at Foundation Phase was set we
did not have sufficient time series data to guide possible future improvements. This was
because 2012 was the first year that the Foundation Phase was fully rolled out across the
country, replacing Early Years (3-5 year olds) and Key Stage 1. We took a realistic
approach, therefore, regarding what was thought to be achievable at that time. The target
itself should not be seen as a ceiling or constraining factor for the attainment of pupils on
free school meals in the Foundation Phase.

Early in 2015 there will be a three year time series of Foundation Phase primary school
teacher assessments data for children eligible for free school meals. At this point we will
have an opportunity to review the current target.

Schools Challenge Cymru

Schools Challenge Cymru will inject up to £20 million funding, alongside proven expertise,
to bring challenge and support to around 40 secondary schools and their cluster primaries
that are challenged in terms of circumstance and delivery. In developing this programme,
we are drawing on the knowledge and expertise of our stakeholders, and working with
experts from across the UK, to construct a coherent package of support that aligns with, and
drives forward delivery of, the national model.

We are working closely with Regional Education Consortia to identify the schools that will be
a part of this programme. In line with the principles of the national model, we have used a
range of performance data and local intelligence to inform this process. | will announce
these schools in early May and this will be followed by a period of reflection and action
planning with the schools and regional Education Consortia

While the focus will be on participant schools, we expect many more schools in Wales to
realise benefits as we make full use of some Wales’ finest and highest performing schools
to share expertise and leadership directly into the classroom and to support teachers to
achieve the improvements they seek.

| recently launched a UK wide recruitment campaign to identify Schools Challenge Cymru
Advisers to work with Regional Consortia and schools and drive this important agenda
forward. These will be high quality people who have a proven record in transforming
education for children and young people.

Pack Page 37



Building on this, on 9 April, | announced Professor Mel Ainscow (CBE) as Schools
Challenge Cymru Champion. As Chief Adviser for the Greater Manchester Challenge
between 2007 and 2011, and with his understanding of the Welsh education landscape, Mel
will be an excellent ambassador for the programme.

The Schools Challenge Cymru programme, which is still in development, will be rolled out
from September 2014.

| hope this information is helpful.

@aﬂ'@ﬁwﬁ”

Huw Lewis AC/ AM
Y Gweinidog Addysg a Sgiliau
Minister for Education and Skills

Pack Page 38



	Agenda
	2 Pre Legislative scrutiny of the Qualification (Wales) Bill - Evidence session 1
	CYPE(4)-12- 14 Paper 1

	3 Pre Legislative scrutiny of the Qualifications (Wales) Bill - Evidence session 2
	4 Pre Legislative scrutiny of the Qualifications (Wales) Bill - Evidence session 3
	5.1 Inquiry into Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services - Additional information from Barnardo's Cymru following the meeting on 2 April
	5.2 Inquiry into Educational Outcomes for Children from low income households - Letter from the Minister for Education and Skills



